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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Indorama Yarns Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Indorama Yarns Private Limited (‘the
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other information does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Indorama Yarns Private Limited,
on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

The Director's Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the
Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control;

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;
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Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of Indorama Yarns Private Limited,
on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the Company has not paid or provided for any managerial
remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit,
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial
statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph
13(h)}(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(as amended).

¢) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act;

e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Indorama Yarns Private Limited,
on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

f)

Vi.

Chartered Accountants

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph 13(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 13(h){vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended);

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position
as at 31 March 2024.;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024,

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024.;

. The mianagement has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 41(e) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the
intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 41(f) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2024.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial
year commencing on 1 April 2023, has used accounting software for maintaining its books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that, audit trail
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Indorama Yarns Private Limited,
on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

feature was not enabled at database level for accounting software to log any direct data
changes, as described in note 42 to the financial statements. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect
of the accounting software where such feature is enabled.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Membership No.: 512371 \x
UDIN: 24512371BKFEUJ99

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2024
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Indorama Yarns Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-
progress.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment and capital work-in-progress under which the assets are physically verified in a
phased manner over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this
programme, certain property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress, were
verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee).
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Order’) is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has adopted cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year, except for goods-in-transit. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of
such verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more
in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed as compared to book records. In
respect of goods-in-transit, these have been confirmed from corresponding receipts and/or
dispatch inventory records.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by banks or financial institutions on
the basis of security of current assets at any point of time during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Indorama Yarns Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2024 (cont’d)

within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/ services / business activities.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight
delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books
of accounts.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received
from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by
way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any funds on short term basis during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (&) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Indorama Yarns Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2024 (cont’d)

placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a8) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
period covered by our audit.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xiiy The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section
133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business as
required under the provisions of section 138 of the Act.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi}(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

(b) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of
the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016) does not have any CIC.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial years amounting to Rs. 3,719.00 lakhs and Rs.478.86 lakhs respectively.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Indorama Yarns Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2024 (cont’d)

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information in the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors
and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall
due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not meet the criteria
as specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said
clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

k Gogia AN /%
Partner \>\_//°f/
Membership No.: 512371 ~<coutt”
UDIN: 24512371BKFEUJ9931

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2024
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Indorama
Yarns Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Indorama Yarns Private Limited (‘the
Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'} prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Indorama
Yarns Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024(cont’d)

policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: OO‘IO?GN&S,

Kartik Gogia
Partner Dy
Membership No.: 512371 el

UDIN: 24512371BKFEUJ9931

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2024

Chartered Accountants



Indorama Yarns Private Limited

CIN: U17299MH2019PTC329375

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

{All amounts in T Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

As at As at
Particulars Notos 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Asgets
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2 16,241.35 132.67
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3 298.64 12,897.84
{c) Intangible assets 4 1.95 -
(d)Financial assets
i) Other financial assets 5 1.51 1.51
(e) Non-current tax assets (net) 6 80.42 18.50
(f) Other non-current assets 7 57.80 242.92
Total non-current assets 16,681.77 13,293.44
Current assets
(a} Inventories 8 4,792.31 539.64
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 9 5,609.02 374.62
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 10 930.46 260.29
(iii) Other financial assets 1 4.39 80.53
(c) Other current assets 12 1,467.80 1,058.63
Total current assets 12,803.98 2,313.71
Total assets 29,485,75 15,607.15
Equity and liabilitles
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 13 900.00 900.00
(b) Other equity 14 {4,425.89) (337.25)
Total equity (3,525.89) 562.75
Liabilltles
Non-current Habilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 12,775.00 12,487.04
(b) Provisions 16 12.01 1.13
Total non-current liabilities 12,787.01 12,488.17
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabitities
(i) Borrowings 15 2,100.00
(ii) Trade payables
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; 59.35 323.33
(b) total outstanding dues other than (a) above 17 17.514.97 1,590.60
(i) Other financiat fiabilities 18 363,41 628.39
(b} Other current liabilities 19 186.50 13.87
(c) Provisions 16 0.40 0.04
Total current liabilities 20,224.63 2,556.23
Total equity and liabilities 29,485.75 15,607.15

Notes 1 to 42 forms an integral part of these financial statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regisiration No.: 001 076N/N500013

artiGogia
finer
Membership No.: 512371

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Indorama Yarng Private Limited

Arvinder Singh
Director
DIN-10552327

Place: Nagpur
Date: 14 May 2024

A

Umesh¥Wumar Agrawal
Director
DiIN: 08502514

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2024



indorama Yarns Private Limited

CIN: U17299MH2019PTC329375

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amounts In € Lakhs, unl tated otherwise)

. Faor the year anded For the year andad
Particulars Notes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
| Income
Revanue from operations 20 83,311.58 18.360.37
Other income 21 3.23 1.86
Total income 83,314.81 18,362.23
Il Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 22 64,532.93 -
Purchases of stock-In-trade 23 19,233.83 16,939.00
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and
stock-in-trade 24 (1,958.40) 1,219.29
Employee benefits expense 25 220.30 17.82
Other expenses 26 3,548.50 470.54
Expenses before depreciation and amortisation expense, finance costs and
foreign exchange fluctuation B3;577-16 18i646:65
. I ] d .
Loss before doprfcnation and amortisation expense, finance costs and foreign (2,262.35) (284.42)
exchange fluctuation
Depreciation and amortisation expense 27 365.68 23.29
Finance costs 28 1,481.63 66,99
Foreign exchange fluctuation (gain)/loss (24.98) 127.45
Total expenses 87,399.49 18,864.38
|y Loss befors tax [I-4i} (4.084.68) (502.15)
IV Tax expense :
Current tax credit - -
Deferred tax expenses/(credit) - (15.66)
Total tax expenses - (15.686)
v Loss for the year (lll4V] (4,084.68) __(486.49)
VI Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit llability (3.96)
Less: income tax relating to remeasurement of defined benetit liability - -
Other comprehensive income for the year {3.96) -
vl Total comprehensive income for the year (4,088.64) (486.49)
Vill Loss per equity share {nominal value of equity share  10]
Basic and diluted 29 (45.38) (9.10)

Notes 1to 42 forms an integral part of these financial statements

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

Faor Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Charlered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.; 001076N/N500013

rtik Gogia
Partner
Membership No.: 512371

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2024

Arvinder Singh
Director
DIN-10552327

Place: Nagpur
Date: 14 May 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Indorama Yarns Private Limited

Umesh Kumnar Agrawal
Director
DIN: DB502514

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2024



Indorama Yarns Private Limited

CIN: U17299MH019PTC329375

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A. Cash Flow from operating Activities
Loss before tax (4,084.68) (502.15)
Add: Adjustment for non-cash and non-operating items
Finance costs 1,48183 66.99
Depreciation and amortisation expense 365.68 23.29
Loss on disposal/discard of property, plant and equipment - 82.06
Interest income {0.21) (1.86)
Operating loss before working capital changes (2.237.58) (331 67)
Adjustments for movement in:
Changes in trade receivabies (5,234.40) 39.44
Changes in other assets (409.17) (512.29)
Changes in inventaries (4,252.67) 1.219 29
Changes in other financial assets 76.14 (8204)
Changes in trade payables 15,660.38 (1,011.87)
Changes in other financial liabilities (3.41) 244
Changes in other liabilities 172.63 (12.44)
Changes in provisions 7.29 1.18
Cash generated from/{used in) operating activities 3,779.21 (687.96)
Income tax paid [Net] (61.71) (20.62)
Net cash generated from/{used in) operating activities{A] 3,717.50 (708.58)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant, equipment (3,955.99) (10,353 .28)
(including capital work in progress and capital advances)
Sale of property, plant and equipment - 375.98
Interest received - 1.86
Net cash used in investing activities[B] (3,955.99) (9,975.44)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from non current borrowings 2,387 96 10,256 44
Proceeds from issue of share capital - 600.00
Finance costs paid {1,479.30) (84.11)
Net cash generated from financing activities[C] 908.66 10,792.33
Net increase in cash and cash aquivalents[A+B+C] 870.17 108.31
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 260.29 151.98
Closing cash and cash equivalents[Note 10} 930.46 260.29
Notes:

1. The above statement of cash flow has been prepared under the “Indirect Method™ as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7) on "Statements of Cash Flows"
2 Negative figures have been shown in brackets.

3 Refer note 15 for reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities in accordance with Ind AS-7.

Notes 1 to 42 forms an integral part of these financial statements

This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accourtants
Firm's Registration No : 001076N/N500013

Partner
Membership No.: 512371

Place: Gurugram

rtik Gogia

Date: 14 May 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Indorama Yams Private Limited

Arvinder Singh
Director
DIN-10552327

Place: Nagpur
Date: 14 May 2024

A

Umesh Kumar Agrawal
Director
DIN: 08502514

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2024



Indorama Yarns Private Limlted
CIN: U17299MH019PTC329375

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts In ¥ lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

A. Equity share caplital

Particulars

Balance as at

Changes in equity share

Balance as at

1 April 2023 pital during the period 31 March 2024
Equity Share cagilal 900,00 S 900,00
Balance as at Changes In equity share Balance as at
Particulars 1 April 2022 capital during the period 31 March 2023
Equity Share capital 300.00 800.00 800.00
B. Other equity
Attributable to the squity holdors
Particulars Total
Balance at 01 April 2022 149,24
Profit for the year (486.49)
Balance at 31 March 2023 . (337.25)
Loss for the year (4,084.68)
Other comprehensive income for the year (3.96)
Balance at 31 March 2024 {4,425.89)

Notes 1 to 42 forms an integral part of these financial statements

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

ik Gogia
Partner
Membership No.: 512371

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2024

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Indorama Yarns Private Limited

Arvinder Singh
Director
DIN-10552327

Place: Nagpur
Date: 14 May 2024

Tl'[

Director

A

Kumar Agrawal

DiN: 08502514

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2024



Indorama Yarns Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policy information and other explanatory information for the year
ended 31 March 2024

(i) Corporate information

Indorama Yarns Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’ or 1YPL’) is a Private Company
domiciled in India, with its registered office situated at A-31, MIDC Industrial Area, Butibori, Nagpur. The
Company has been incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The Company is engaged in
trading of polyester yarn and manufacturing of polyester chips.

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 14 May 2024.

(ii) Basis of preparation and presentation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. All amounts have been
rounded-off to the nearest lakhs and two decimals thereof, unless otherwise indicated.

The statement of cash flows have been prepared under indirect method.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets
and financial liabilities which are measured at fair value/ amortised cost.

(iii) Amended Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and interpretations effective during the year

a.

Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in accounting
policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and
inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the company.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing
the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose
their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in
making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company’s financial statements.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind
AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases.

This amendment had no impact on the company.

(iv) Material accounting policy information

da.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabifities, income, expenses and other comprehensive income (OCI) that are reported and disclosed
in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Accounting estlmates could change from period to
period. Actual results may differ from these estimates. SN




Indorama Yarns Private Limited :
Summary of material accounting policy information and other explanatory information for the year
ended 31 March 2024

These estimates and judgment are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events, historical
experience, actions that the Company may undertake in the future and on various other estimates and
judgments that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Accounting estimates could change
from period to period. Accounting estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which changes
are made. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements
in applying accounting policies that have most significant effect of the amounts recognized in the financial
statements is included in:-

- estimation of useful lives of plant and equipment.

- measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions.

- recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried

forward can be used.

. Going concern

Going concern basis of accounting used for preparation of the accompanying financial statements is
appropriate with no material uncertainty.

Current/non-current classification

Based on the nature of business and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for
the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition, derecognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs,
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes,
after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working
condition for its intended use. The Company identifies and determines separate useful lives for each major
component of the property, plant and equipment, if they have a usefu! life that is materially different from that
of the asset as a whole.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognized as an asset if, and only if:
(a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
(b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment under construction and cost of assets not ready for use at the year-end are
disclosed as capital work- in- progress.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if
it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard or period of
performance. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repairs,
maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
year during which such expenses are incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method over their estimated

useful lives, _akdetermined by the management. Depreciation is charged on a -pro-rata basis for assets
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Indorama Yarns Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policy information and other explanatory information for the year
ended 31 March 2024

purchased/sold during the year.

Based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, the Company have
assessed the estimated useful lives of certain property, plant and equipment that are different from the useful
life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated
useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be
used.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Particulars Management estimate Useful life as per

of useful life Schedule I
Buildings 28/58 years 30/60 years
Plant and equipments 45/20/18 years 25/3 years
Furniture and fixtures 15 years 10 years
Office equipments 20 years/6 years 5 years

Assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated over the period of one year from the date of
purchase/ acquisition and such treatment did not have any material impact on financial statements of the
Company for the current year.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortized cost. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised
cost are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

a breach of contract such as a default in payment within the due date;

- the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties;

- the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

The Company recognises loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (‘ECL’) model for the financial
assets which are not fair valued through Statement of profit and loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables
with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other
financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition, in which case those financial assets are
measured at lifetime ECL. The changes (incremental or reversal) in loss allowance computed using ECL
model, are recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of profit and loss.

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward looking information. When making this assessment, the Company uses
the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial asset. To make that
assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the balance
sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue -egst or effort, that is
indic/@,ymsigniﬁcant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit
' .;-_:V .’____‘__fl é :\.\ P = ‘- .
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Indorama Yarns Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policy information and other explanatory information for the year
ended 31 March 2024

risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is
determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date. The Company considers a financial asset to be
in default when the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by
the Company to actions such as realising security (if any) is held.

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Raw materials, stock-in-trade, packing material and stores and spares: The cost of inventories is
calculated on weighted average basis, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and
other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition. Raw materials, components and
other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are not written down below cost except in
cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will
exceed their net realisable value.

Work-in-progress and manufactured finished goods: Cost includes raw material costs and an
appropriate share of fixed production overheads based on normal operating capacity. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
selling expenses. The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling
prices of related finished products.

Waste: The valuation is done at net realisable value.
The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis
Foreign exchange transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional currency spot rates
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities if any that are measured based on historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

All exchange differences, except those relating to long-term monetary foreign currency items, are dealt with
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee benefits
i. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term
cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

ii. Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company
makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered provident fund scheme.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in
Statement of Profit and Loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future
payments is available. .




Indorama Yarns Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policy information and other explanatory information for the year
ended 31 March 2024

iii. Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. The calculation of defined benefit
obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, are
recognised in OCI. The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit
liability or the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the
net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service (‘past service cost' or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

iv. Other long-term employee benefits

The Company's net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment
benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value.

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in
future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since, the compensated
absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months after the end
of such period, the benefit is classified as a other long-term employee benefit. The Company records an
obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that
increase this entittement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method. Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss.

The Company has unconditional right to defer payment of compensated absences beyond 12 months from
reporting date.

Revenue
i. Sale of goods

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, service level credits, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the
customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers. There is no significant financing
component because there isn't any difference between the amount of promised consideration and the cash
selling price.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products to customers being when the goods
are shipped to the customers or dispatched from warehouse basis the contract with customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or
services, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing
effective control over or managerial involvement with, the goods, and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably. Where the payment extends beyond normal credit périod, interest is recovered
separately. ? :
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Indorama Yarns Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policy information and other explanatory information for the year
ended 31 March 2024

ii. Interestincome

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the
interest rate applicable.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or ftransferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as other gains/(losses).

Borrowings are classified as current financial liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach
of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the
effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the
liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial
statements, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach. :

Financial instruments
i. Recognition and initial measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability of
another entity. Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. A financial instrument is measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction
costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) which are measured initially at fair
value.

However, trade receivables are initially measured at transaction price (as defined in Ind AS 115, Revenue
from Contract with Customers) unless those contain a significant financing component determined in
accordance with Ind AS 115.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost or at FVTPL. Financial
assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business mode! for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

deS|gnated as at FVTPL:
the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at
FVTPL.

For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) On initial recognition, the
Company maxmyoc\?bly designate a financial asset that otherwise meetsithe requirements to be measured




Indorama Yarns Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policy information and other explanatory information for the year
ended 31 March 2024

at amortised cost at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

— how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;
how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets-

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending
risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it

would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

— prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company'’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. hon-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its
contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially
represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest is treated as consistent
with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition. Financial
assets at amortised cost are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest income
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
FVTPL including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss A

Financial -gssets at | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised ;cost using the effective
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Indorama Yarns Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policy information and other explanatory information for the year
ended 31 March 2024

amortised cost interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as
at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Other
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or
loss on derecognition is also recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cheques on hand, cash on hand,
short term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to known

amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable
profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a
deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing

other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be
realised.

The Company's ability to recover the deferred tax assets is assessed by the management at the close of
each financial year which depends upon the forecasts of the future results and taxable profits that Company
expects to earn within the period by which such brought forward losses may be adjusted against the taxable
profits as governed by the Income-tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are
reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer
probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset deferred tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle deferred tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or
their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

. Measurement of profit loss before depreciation and amortisation expense, finance costs and foreign
exchange fluctuation

The Company have elected to present profit before depreciation and amo_rji.sféition bxlfsﬁéﬂsg, finance costs,
and forelggﬁfg?qnge fluctuation as a separate line item on the face of the statement of Profit'and Loss.
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Indorama Yarns Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policy information and other explanatory information for the year
ended 31 March 2024

In the measurement, the Company includes interest income but does not include depreciation and
amortization expense, finance costs, foreign exchange fluctuation and tax expense.

0. Amendment to Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended 31st
March,2024 MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to
the Company.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Summary of material accounting policy information and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

2. Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Plant and equipment Buildings Furniture and Fixtures Vehicles . il LES
equipments
A. Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 01 April 2022 324.26 - - 179.12 - 503.38
Additions during the year 127.60 - 0.16 - 2.55 130.31
Disposals during the year 319.056 - - 179.12 - 498.17
Balance as at 31 March 2023 132.81 - 0.16 - 2.55 135.52
Additions during the year 11,304.92 5,131.61 541 31.92 16,473.86
Disposals during the year - - - £ - -
Balance as at 31 Mar 2024 11,437.73 5,131.61 5.57 - 34.47 16,609.38
B. Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01 April 2022 15.48 - 4.20 - 19.68
Additions during the year 11.56 - 0.10 11.38 0.25 23.29
Disposals during the year 24.54 - - 15.58 - 40.12
Balance as at 31 March 2023 2.50 - 0.10 - 0.25 2.85
Additions during the year 217.65 141.89 2.36 3.28 365.18
Disposals during the year - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 Mar 2024 220.15 141.89 2.46 - 3.53 368.03
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2023 130.31 - 0.06 - 2.30 132.67
As at 31 March 2024 11,217.58 4,989.72 3.11 - 30.94 16,241.35

Note

1. Refer note 32 for information on capital commitments for acquisitions of property, plant and equipment.

2.The costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of property,plant and equipment has been capitalised during the year refer note 35

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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3. Capital work-in-progress

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Capital work-in-progress
Balance at the beginning of the year 12,897.84 22243
Additions during the year 3,877.86 12,805.72
Less: Amount capitalised during the year (16.477.06) (130.31)
Total 298.64 12,897.84

Notes:
1.The costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of property,plant and equipment has been capitalised during the year refer note 35

(a) Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule as at 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023

Amount in capital work-in-progress for a period of

Projects in progress Lesi:;‘:‘“ i 12Years 2.3 Years More than 3 Years Total
31st March 2024 298,64 - : = 298.64
31st March 2023 12,755.43 142.41 = 2 12,897.84

(b) There are no such project under capital work in progress whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan as of 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

4. Intangible 1

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Saftware
A. Gross carrying amount
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Additions during the year 245 -
Disposals - -
Balance as at end of the year 2.45 -
B. Accumulated amortisation
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Additions during the year 0.50 -
Disposals - -
Balance as at end of the year 0.50 -
Net carrying value 1.95 -
5, Other financial assets
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Security deposit 1.51 1.51
Total z 1.51 1.51
6.Non current tax ts (net)
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Prepaid income tax 8042 18.50
Total 80.42 18.50
7. Other non current assets
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Capital Advances 57.90 24292
Total 57.90 242.92
8. Inventories
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
[Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value, uniess otherwise stated]
Work-in-progress 5.29 -
Finished goods* 3,583.53 -
Stores and spares 10.32 -
Stock in trade [ include in transit Rs 392.11 Lakhs ] ( 31st March 2023 : Rs 539.64 Lakhs)] 1,150.05 539.64
Packing material 3241 -
Waste** 10.71 -
4,792.31 539.64
* The inventories were reduced by Rs. 1.07 Lakhs [31 March 2023 : 2 nil] on account of net realisable value being lower than the cost
** valued at net realisable value.
9. Trade receivables
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good 5,609.02 374.62
Total 5,609.02 374.62

1. The Company limits its exposure to credit risk from trade receivables by establishing a credit period for all customber categories. In case of delay beyond credil period the interest is generally
recovered at the rate of 12 % to 18 %. .

2.No amount is due from directors or officers of the Company.

Trade receivable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

31 March 2024 ;[:""HAN'D!-" Lessthan 6 6 months to 1 Total
XL~ " i - - [
/+f «\\ Not Due months years 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Undisputed trade receivables /= f‘
Cuonsidered good / * - 3,082 83 2,546.19 - - - - . 5,609.02
Total trade receivables 1< =] 306283 2,546.19 E - - == b 5,609.02

* -
A5
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Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

SQ¥archiz02s Not Due LR OOy 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years i
months years
Undisputed trade receivables
Considered good 134.19 240.43 - - - - 374.62
Total trade receivables 134.19 240.43 - - - - 374.62
There are no disputed and unbilled trade receivables. Hence, the same is not discloused in the ageing schedule.
10. Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balances with banks 928.56 258.29
Cash on hand 1.90 2.00
930.46 260.29
11. Other financial assets
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advance to employee 0.69 0.05
Claims and other receivables a70 80.48
4.39 80.53
12. Other current assets
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance with government authorities 1,331.25 915.89
Advance to vendors 11.18 7.03
Prepaid expenses 125.37 135.71
1,467.80 1,058.63
13. Equity share capital
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Authorised
10,000,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each [31 March 2023: 1,000,000] 1,000.00 1,000.00
1000.00 1,000.00
Issued, subscirbed and fully paid up
90,00,000 (31 March 2023 : 90,00,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-up 900.00 900.00
900.00 900.00
Notes:
i) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Number of Number of
shares Amount T Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 90,00,000 900.00 30,00,000 300.00
Add: Issued during the year = = 60,00,000 600.00
Balance at the end of the year 90,00,000 900.00 90,00,000 900.00

ii)The rights, preferences and restriction attaching to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of capital
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company,
holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of

equity shares held by ihe shareholders.

iii)y Shares in the Company held by each sharehelder holding more than 5% are as under:

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Names of shareholders Number of % of Number of % of

shares share holding shares share holding

Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited [holding Company] 90,00,000.00 100.00 §0,00,000.00 100.00
90,00,000.00 100.00 90,00,000.00 100.00

* including nominee shareholders

(iv) Shareholding held ny promoter is as follows :

Shareholding at the end of the year

Promoter Name As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

% change in

% of total Shares No. of Shares % of total Shares shareholding
No. of Shares .
of the Company of the Company during the year
Indo Rama Synihelics (India) Limited [holding Gompany] §0,00,000 100 90,00,000 100 -

Shareholding at the end of the year

Promoter Name As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

% change in

% of total Shares

of the Company No. of Shares

Meo. of Shares

% of total Shares
of the Company

shareholding
during the year

Indo Rama Synthelics (Iindia) Limited [holding Company] 90,00,000 100 30.00,000

100 *

v) The Company has not issued any share pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cash in the current year. The Company has not issued any bonus shares nor has there been

any buy-back of shares in the current year.

14. Other equity

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2024

a. Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add : Loss during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Total other equity

(337.25) 149.24
{4.088.64) (486.49)
{4,425.89) (337.25)
{4,425.89) (337.25)

Nature of reserves
Retained earnings
Retained eamings refer to the net profit/(loss) retained by the Company for its core business aclivities.
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15 Borrowings

Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Secured loan
Term loan from banks
i) Rupee term loans from banks 11,900.00 11,987.04 2,100.00 -
Unsecured loan from Holding company 875.00 500.00 - -
12,775.00 12,487.04 2,100.00 -

Note:

Details of rate of interest, terms of repayment and security for long-term loans from banks:

Secured term loans from bank

2 14,000.00 lakhs (31 March 2023 :% 11,987.04 lakhs) are secured by Stand By Letter of Credit (SBLC) by ultimate controlling company (i.e, Indorama Ventures Public Company Limited)
repayable in 16 quarterly yearly installments aggregating to ¥ 525 lakhs each in FY 2024-2025, ¥ 875 lakhs each in FY 2025-2026, ¥ 1050 lakhs each in FY 2026-2027, ¥ 1050 lakhs each in FY
2027-2028, rate of interest range from 8.70% p.a to 10.29% p.a ( 31 March 2023 : 6.25% p.a to 10.09% p.a.)

Unsecured loan

Rate of interest As at As at
t
Namelofjtslatediparty paturelofiioan Per annum i RIS 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited Non current 9.25% Within 1-5 years 875.00 500.00
Total - 875.00 500.00

(a) The purpose of the loan is for meeting the funding requirements for ongoing project capex execution.
{b) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of interest during the current financial year. There are no financial covenants of any interest bearing loans and borrowings applicable in the

{c) Reconcilialion of movements of liabililies 1o cash flows arising from financing activities:

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Opening balance

Non current borrowings 12,487.04 2,230.60
Cash flows
Proceeds from non current borrowings 2,387 .96 10,256.44
Closing z
Non current borrowings 14,875.00 12,487.04
16 Provisions
Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity [refer note 31] 3.78 0.40 0.01 0.00
Provision for compensated absences [refer note 31] 8.23 0.73 0.39 0.04
Total 12.01 1.13 0.40 0.04
17 Trade payables
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises [refer note 33] 59.35 323.33
Tolal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises* 17,614.97 1590.60
17,574.32 1,913.93
*includes towards related parties (refer note 34 ) 15,226.54 1,670.75

Trade payable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of Payment

31 March 2024 Total
are . Not Due Les:::ran L 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Undisputed trade payables
Qutsianding due to micro enterprises and small enterprises 35.38 23.97 & - 5 59.35
Others 4,132.51 13,382.46 - - - 17,514.97
Total trade pavables 4.167.89 13,408.42 - - - 17,574.32

Qutstanding for the following periods from the due date of Payment

SISt arenian2s Not Due Les::::n L 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years gets
Undisputed trade payables
QOutstanding due to micro enterprises and small enterprises 316.97 6.36 - - - 323,33
Others 1,588.18 0.28 2.14 - - 1,590.60
Total trade payables 1,905.15 6.64 214 - - 1,913.93
18.0ther Financial Liablities
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest accrued and not due on borrowings 5.59 3.26
Forward cover payable - 474
Payable to employees 213 0.79
Creditors towards property, plant and equipment* 355.56 619.46
Others 0.13 0.14
Total 363.41 628.39
*Includes Rs 270.70 Lakhs (31 March 2023:Rs. 452.85 Lakhs) towards dues of micro enterprise and small enterprise ==
19. Other current liabilities
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advances from customers 165.77 0.0z
Statutory dues 16.68 12.51
Others 4.05 1.34
Total 186.50 13.87
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20 Revenue from operations

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

a) Sale of products
Finished goods
Domestic
Export
Traded goods
Domestic

Less: Rebates and discounts to customers
Sub-total (A)

b) Other operating income;
Interest from customers
Sub-total (B)

Total (A+B)

Notes:

i) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Gross sale of products
Less: Adjustments on account of discounts and price differences

i) Contract Balances
Advance from customers* [refer note 19]

i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

a. Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in the contract liability

balance at the beginning of the period

b. Revenue recognised in the reporting period from performace obligations satisfied
(or partially satisfied) in previous period

* The Company expects to realise the contract balances within contracted period.

2

-

Other income

67,081.95 -
3,288.71 N
18,897.38 18,588.62
89,268.04 18,588.62
5,071.55 228.25
83,196,49 18,360.37

115.09 s

115.09 =
83,311.58 18,360.37
89,268.04 18,588.62
6,071.55 228.25
83,196.49 18,360.37
165.77 0.02
0.02 0.05

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Interest income

from banks - 0.62
from others 0.21 1.24
Miscellaneous income 3.02 -
Total 3.23 1.86
22 Cost of materials consumed
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Raw materials at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases during the year

Less: Raw materials at the end of the year
Total

Note: The costs that are directly attributable to the acquistion or construction of propery plant and equipment has been capitalised during the year, refer

note 35

23 Purchases of stock-in-trade

64,532.93

64,532.93

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Purchases of stock-in-trade 19,233.83 16,939.00
Total 19,233.83 16,939.00

24 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and stock-in-trade

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Opening stock (A)
Finished goods
Stock in trade
Work-in-progress
Waste

Closing stock (B)
Finished goods
Stock in trade
Work-in-progress
Waste

. ACCOWE
Add: Finished goods genera trial run (refer note 35)
Total

1,758.93

539.64
539.64 1,758.93
3,583.53 .
1,150.05 539.64
5,29 -
10.71 .
4,749.58 539.64
2,251.54 N
(1,958.40) 1,219.29
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25 Employee benefit expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Salaries, wages and bonus 205.65 16.29
Contribution to provident and other funds [refer note 31] 13.90 1.03
Staff welfare expenses 0.75 0.50

220.30 17.82

Note: The costs that are directly attributable to the acquistion or construction of propery plant and equipment has been capitalised during the year, refer note 35

26 Other expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Consumption of stores and spares 50.00 0.14
Power and fuel charges 691.54 -
Rent and hire charges 144.87 24.61
Repairs and maintenance 64.59 -
Insurance 23.54
Rates and taxes 1.99 3.05
Packing material consumed 322,90 -
Freight and forwarding charges 1,783.69 10.73
Brokerage and commission 66.05 81.64
Legal and professional charges 167.68 249.76
Auditor's remuneration

- for audit fees 4.50 3.00

- for other services 1.50 2,50

-for out of pocket expenses 0.51 0.32
Loss on disposal/discard of property, plant and equipment - 82.06
Contract labour expenses 148.05 -
Miscellaneous 77.09 12.73
Total 3,548.50 470.54

Note: The costs that are directly attributable to the acquistion or construction of propery plant and equipment has been capitalised during the year, refer note 35

27 Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 2) 365.18 23.29
Amortisation on intangible assets (refer note 4) 0.50 -
365.68 23.29

28 Finance costs

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Interest
term loans 1,066.94 1.78
others 174.58 59.39
Other borrowing costs 240.11 5.82
1,481.63 66.99

Note: The costs that are directly attributable to the acquistion or construction of propery plant and equipment has been capitalised during the year, refer note 35

29 Earning's /{Loss) per share

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Loss attributable to the equity shareholders (A) (4,084.67)
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 90,00,000
Total number of shares outstanding at the end of the year 90,00,000
Weighted-average number of equity shares (B) 90,00,000
Earnings/(loss) per share (%) (A/B) - Basic and Diluted (45.38)
Nominal value of equity share (%) 10.00

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

(486.49)
30,00,000
90,00,000
5§3,45,205

(9.10)

10.00
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30. Financlal instruments - accounting classifications and fair value measurements

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other

than in a forced or liquidation sales.

A. Accounting classiflcations and fair values

The following tables shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

As at 31 March 2024

Carrying value

Fair value hierarchy

Particulars FVTPL* FVOCI# Amortized cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets at amortised cost

Trade receivables - - 5,609.02 5,609.02 -

Other financial assets 5.90 5.90

Cash and cash equivalents - = 930.46 930.46 -

Total - - 6,545.38 6,545.38 =

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Trade payables - - 17,574.32 17,574.32 -

Borrowings - - 14,875.00 14,875.00 =

Other financial liabilities - - 363.41 363.41 -

Total - - 32,812.73 32,812.73 -

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars Carrying \{alue Fair value hierarchy
FVTPL* FVOCi# Amortized cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets at amortised cost

Trade receivables 374.62 374.62

Other financial assets 82.04 82.04

Cash and cash equivalents - - 260.29 260.29 -

Total - - 716.95 716.95 -

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Trade payables - - 1,913.93 1,913.93 -

Borrowings 12,487.04 12,487.04

Other financial liabilities - - 628.39 628.39 -

Total - - 15,029.36 15,029.36 -

*Fair value hrough prefit and loss

#Fair value through other comprehensive income

Notes:

1. The amortised cost of financial assets and liablities approximate to the fair values on the respective reporting dates

2. There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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B. Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the foilowing risks arising from financial instruments:
- credit risk

- liquidity risk

- market risk

(i) Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities

(il) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the
Company's receivables from customers.

The Company assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categories arived on the basis of assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial
assets.

A: Low credit risk on financial reporting date

B: Moderate credit risk

C: High credit risk

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings. Loan is
given to subsidiaries. Accordingly, credit risk for loan is considered negligible.
Trade receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the factors that may influence the
credit risk of its customer base, including the defaulit risk associated with the industry and country in which customers operate.

A summary of the Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables based on the ageing is as follows:

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Ageing of receivables Gross carrying Expected credit Gross Expected credit

amount loss carrying amount . loss
Less than 180 days 5,609.02 - 374.62 -
More than 180 days - - - -
Total 5,609.02 - 374.62 -
Expected credit loss for trade receivable as at 31 March 2024

Less than 6 months

- 2
Particular Not due 6 months to 1 year 1-2 year -3year  More than 3 year Total
Gross carrying amount -Trade receivables 3,06283 2,546.19 - - S = 5,609.02
Expected credit loss rate (%) - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% -
Expected credit losses (Loss allowance
provision) = B - a ° - -
Total 5,609.02
Expected credit loss for trade receivable as at 31 March 2023

. Less than 6 manths

Particular Not due 6 months to 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 year Total
Gross carrying amount -Trade receivables 13419 240.43 - - - - 374.62
Expected credit loss rate (%) - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% -
Expected credit losses (Loss allowance
provision) s = ) h - ) °
Total 374.62

(iif) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settied by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation, The Company uses activity-based costing to cost its products, which assists it in
monitoring cash flow requirements and optimising its cash return on investments.

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments :

As at 31 March 2024 On demand Less than 1 year 1- 5 years More than 5 years Total
Trade payables - 17,514.97 - - 17,514.97
Non current borrowings = 3,369.72 15,059.04 - 18,428.76
Other financial liabilities - 383.41 - - 363.41

Total - 21,248.10 15,059.04 - 36,307.14
As at 31 March 2023 On demand Less than 1 year 1-5years More than 5 years Total
Trade payables - 1,913.93 E - 1,913.93
Non current borrowings 1,442.16 15,447.92 - 16,890.08
Other financial liabilities - 628.39 - - 628.39
Total - 3,984.48 15.447.92 - 19.,432.40
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(iv) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as interest rates, commodity prices and foreign exchange rates — will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Interest rate risk

i) Liabilities

The Company's policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long term financing. The Company is exposed to changes in market interest rates through bank borrowings at
variable interest rates.

Interest rate risk exposure
Below is the overall expostre of the Company to interest rate risk:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Variable rate borrowings 14,875.00 12,487.04
Total borrowIngs 14,875.00 12,487.04
Sensitivity

Below is the sensitivity of profit or loss and equity changes in interest rates.

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest sensitivity*

Interest rates — increase by 100 basis points (31 March 2023: 100 basis points) 148.75 124.87
Interest rates — decrease by 100 basis points (31 March 2023: 100 basis points) (148.75) (124.87)

*Holding all other variables constant

ii) Assets
The Company’s fixed deposits are carried at amortised cost and are fixed rate deposits. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the
carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Interest rate risk exposure
There is no interest risk exposure in current as well previous year.

Commodity price risk

Commodity price risk arises due to fluctuation in prices of crude oil. The Company has a risk management framework aimed at prudently managing the risk arising from the volatility in
commodity prices and freight costs. The Company’s commodity risk is managed centrally through well-established control processes. In accordance with the risk management policy, the
Company enters into various transactions using derivatives to hedge its exposure, as and when required. The selling price of finished goods and purchases price of stock-in-trade fluctuates
due to fluctuation in prices of crude oil and the Company expects that the net impact of such fluctation would not be material.

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which sales, purchases and borrowings are denominated. The currencies in which
these transactions are primarily denominated are US dollars. The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its currency risk, most with a maturity of less than one year from the
reporting date, as and when required.
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Exposure to currency risk
The summary quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk (based on notional amounts) as reported to the management is as foilows.
(i) Foreign currency risk exposure:

As at 31 March 2024

Currency Amount In foreign Exchange rate Amount

Particulars currency (in (in¥) (in ¥ lacs)
million)

Trade payables uso 1.38 B3.38 1,150 84

Exposure in respect of recognised liabilities 1,150.64

As at 31 March 2023

Currency Amount in foreign  Exchange rate Amount
Particulars currency (in (in¥) (in Z lacs)
million)
Trade payables UsD 1.90 82.17 1.561.23
Exposure In respect of recognised liabllitles 1,561.23

(li) Hedged foreign currency risk exposure:

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars Amount in foreign Strike rate Hedged amount
Currency currency (in (in¥) (in ¥ lakhs)
million)
Forward contract To take protection against movement in foreign
exchange rates in respect of payables against uUsD = = 5
Imports

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars Currency Amount in foreign Strike rate Hedged amount
currency (in (in &) {in ¥ lakhs)
million)
Forward contract To take protection against movement in foreign
exchange rates in respect of payables against EUR 1.14 8268 942.55
Imports

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the INR and USD against all other currencies at year end would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated
in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and
ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Currency (changes in currency value by 5%) Increase in profit Decrease in profit Increase inprofit Decrease in profit
ush 5% movement 57.54 (57.54) 78.06 (78.08)

C. Capital management
The Company's capital includes issued share capital and all other distributable reserves. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise shareholder value and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Total liabilities 33,011.65 15,044.40
Less: cash and cash equivalents 930.46 260,29
Adjusted net debt 32,081.19 14,784 .11
Total equity (3,525.89) 562.75
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio (8.10) 26.27
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31. Employee benefits
a) Defined contribution plan

An amount of Rs.14.19 lakhs [31 March 2023 ; Rs. 3.98 lakhs] for the year has been recognised as an expense in respect of the Company's contributions towards Provident Fund, an
amount of Rs. 1.25 lakhs [31 March 2023 : Rs. 0.19 lakhs ] for the year has been recognised as an expense in respect of Company's contributions towards Employee State Insurance

which are deposited with the government authorities and have been included under employee benefit expenses .

b) Defined benefit plan
1) Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for
gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the

number of years of service. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation:

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

(i) Changes in present value obligation

Present value obligation as at the beginning of the year 0.40
Interest cost 0.03 -
Current service cost 2.83 0.40
Actuarial loss on obligation 0.53 -
Benefits paid = -
Present value obligation as at the end of the year 3.79 0.40
(ii) Net liability recognised in the Balance Sheet
As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current liabilities 0.01 -
Non-current liabilities 3.78 0.40
Net liability in the Balance Sheet 3.79 0.40

{iii) Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Current service cost 2.83 0.40
Interest cost 0.03 -
Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss 2.86 0.40
(iv) Re-measurements recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income (OCl)
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Changes in financial assumptions (0.53) -
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income {0.53)
(v) Actuarial assumptions
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discount rate (p.a.) 7.23% 7.35%
Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 4.50% 4.50%
Withdrawal rates
Upto 30 years 4.00% 4.00%
From 31 to 44 years 3.00% 3.00%
Above 44 years 1.00% 1.00%
Retirement age 58 years 58 years

Mortality rate
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These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount factors are determined close to each year end by reference to
government bonds of relevant economic markets and that have terms to maturily approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on management's

historical experience.

The above defined benefit plan exposes the Company to following risks:

Interest rate risk:
The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to increase.

Salary inflation risk:
Expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation

Demographic risk:

This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined
benefit obligation is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate withdrawals because in

the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a short career employee typically costs less per year as compared to a long service employee.

Funding
This is an unfunded benefit plan for qualifying employees.

(vi) Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability

The below sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the
assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same methods (present value of defined benefit
obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance

sheet.
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

The sensitivity of the overall plan obligations to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:
Present value of obligation at the end of the year

Impact of the change in discount rate (p.a.)

Impact due to decrease of 0.50% (0.27) 0.03
Impact due to increase of 0.50% 0.30 0.04
Impact of change in salary escalation rate (p.a.)
Impact due to increase of 0.50% 0.31 0.04
Impact due to decrease of 0.50% {0.28) {0.04)
(vii) Expected future cash flows
As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

The expected future cash flows in respect of gratuity (undiscounted) were as follows:

Year 1* 0.01 -
Year 2* 0.01 -
Year 3* 0.02 -
Year 4* 0.08 -
Year 5 0.10 0.01
Year 6 0.14 0.01
Year 6 onwards 3.43 0.38
Total 3.79 0.40

* Amount below rounding off norms

(viii) Expected contribution
The expected future employer contributions for defined benefit plan Rs. 3.82 lakhs as at 31 March 2023 [31 March 2023 : Rs. 1.07 lakhs].

(ix) Weighted average duration
The weighted average duration for defined benefit plan is 18.25 years as at 31 March 2024 [31 March 2023 19.09 years].

c) Other long-term employee benefits LN
An amount of Rs.10.58 lakhs [31 March 2023 : Rs, 0.77 lakhs ] pertains to expense towards compensated absences
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32. Capital commit t:

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Capital commitments - estimated amount of contracts remaining o be executed on capital account and 246.62 1,348.98

not provided for [net of capital advances] (for acquisition of property, plant and equipment)

33. Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises

On the basis of confirmations obtained from suppliers who have registered themselves under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act,
2006) and based on the information available with the Company, the following are the details:

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Principal amount remaining unpaid 330.05 776.18
Interest due thereon 9.00 21.48
Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of MSMED Act, 2006, along
with the amount of the payment made to the suppliers and service providers 2,088,52 5,138.44
beyond the appointed day during the year
Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the 25.09 37.37
interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at end of the year

Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until

34. Related party disclosure
a) Disclosure of related parties and relationship between the parties

93.18

59.09

Nature of relationship
i) Key managerial personnel

ii) Entities over which Key Management Personnel
of Holding Company and their close members are
able to exercise significant influence (with whom
transaction have taken place)

iii) Holding Company

iv) Uitimate controlling Company

v) Fellow subsidiary {with whom transaction have takken place)

*The Group has availed credit lines with the support of the promoter Group Company to the tune of USD 18.5 million [31 March 2023 : USD 19 million] by way of stand by

letter of credit (SBLC)

Name of related party

Mr. M N Sudhindra Rao [Director]

Mr. Umesh Kumar Agrawal [Director]

Mr. Hemant Balkrishna Bal [Director]

Mr. Vijay Yashpal Suri [Director] [till 26 February 2024]

Mr. Arvinder Singh [Director] [appointed w.e.f. 03 March 2024]

PT. Indorama Ventures Indonesia

TPAC Packaging India Private Limited

IVL Dhunseri Petrochem Industries Private Limited
PT Indorama Synthetics TBK

PT Indorama Polychem Indonesia

Indorama Ventures Global Service Limited

Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited

Indorama Netherlands BV [controlling company of holding Company]

Indorama Ventures Public Company Limited [ultimate controlling company]*

Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited

b) Disclosure of transactions between the Company and its related parties**

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

i) Other group entities over which Key Management Personnel and their
relatives are able to exercise significant influence

Purchases of goods and services

PT Indorama Ventures Indonesia 13,819.17 15,193.85
IVL Dhunseri Petrochem Industries Private Limited 63.42 17.51
Indorama Ventures Global Service Limited - 58.58
Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited 34543 -
PT Indorama Synthetics TBK 1.774.21 -
PT Indorama Polychem Indonesia 696.62 =
16,698.85 15,269.94
Sale of goods and services
TPAC Packaging India Private Limited 408,24 -
409.24 -
Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited
Purchase of goods and services 80,518.55 595.96
Sale of goods and services 0.52 296.00
Unsecured loans taken during the year 375.00 500.00
Interest expenses 76.91 2.00
80,970.98 1,393.96
As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

i) Ultimate controlling company
Purchases of goods and services

Indorama Ventures Public Company Limited
CRANDI>S.
f

21410

71.87

21410

71.87
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As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

c) Disclosure of related parties year end balances

i) Other group entities over which Key Management Personnel and their
Close members are able to exercise significant influence

ii)Trade payables

PT Indorama Ventures Indonesia 616.93 1,438.91
Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited 13,715.64 1.24
Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited 345.12 -
PT Indorama Synthetics TBK 260.90 -
PT Indorama Polychem Indonesia 94.18 -
IVL Dhunseri Petrochem Industries Private Limited 16.98 -
Indorama Ventures Public Company Limited 176.79 130.60
15,226.54 1,570.75
iii) Unsecured Loans
Indorama Synthetics (India) Limited ; 875.00 500.00
875.00 500
iv) Interest payable
Indorama Synthetics (India) Limited - 2.00
- 2.00
** The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm'’s length transactions.
Note: The disclosure of transactions between the Company and its related parties presented above are inclusive of taxes, where applicable
35. Capitalisation of expenditure incurred during construction period
The costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of certain property , plant and equipment are capitalised as under :
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance 963.98 80.02
Incurred during the year
Raw material consumption 2,677.56 -
Change in inventory (2,251.54) -
Employee benefit expense* 2292 61.45
Other expenses 168.24 82.51
Finance costs# 200.63 740.00
Net expenditure 1,781.79 963.98
Less : Expenses capitalised to property plant and equipment during the year 1,781.79 -
Balance carried forward as part of capital work in progress - 963.98

* Includes expenses towards provident fund as at 31 March 2024 Rs. 1.34 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs.3.63 lakhs)
# Finance cost is capitalised in accordance with Ind AS 23, Borrowing Costs
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36. Deferred tax liabilities

|. Recognition of deferred tax and liabilities
Deferred tax assets Deferred tax (liabilities) Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Property, plant and equipment - - (4.22) (4.22) (4.22) (4.22)
Brought forward business losses 4.22 4.22 - - 4.22 4.22
4.22 4.22 (4.22) (4.22) - -
Offselting of deferred tax assets and deffered tax liabiillies (4.22) (4.22) 4.22 4.22 - -
Net deferred tax liability - - - - - -
|l. Movement in temporary differences
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance of deferred tax liability = 15.66
Tax expense during the year recognised in the statement of profit or loss -

Closing balance of deferred tax liability

Ill. Effective tax rate

(15.66)

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Loss before tax

Effective tax rate (As per Income Tax Act, 1961)

Current tax expense/(income) on profit before tax at the effeclive income tax rate in India
Unrecognised deferred tax assets on unused tax losses and unabsoorbed depreciation
Others

Tax expense/ (credit) reported in the statement of profit and loss

Tax expense/ {credit) during the year recognised in statement of profit or loss
Tax expense/ {credit) during the year recognised in other comprehensive income

C. Unrecc d deferred tax

(4.084.67) (602.15)
25.17% 2517%
(1,028.04) (126.38)
1,028.05 106.50
o 4.22

5 {15.66)

= (15.66)

- (15.66)

L

As at 31 March 2024

Unrecognised

Gross amount Gross amount

As at 31 March 2023
Unrecognised

tax effect tax effect
Unabosebed depreciation (never expire) 150.51 37.88 26.97 6.79
Unused tax losses (refer below table) 4,357.31 1,096.66 396.18 99.71
4,507.82 1,134.54 423.15 106.50
The unused business tax losses for which no deferred tax assets are recognised, are as follows:
Year of expiry As at As at
Year ended 31 March 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
2031-32 3,961.13 -
2030-31 396.18 396.18
4,357.31 396.18

The Company has not recognized deferred tax assets in respect of the unused tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation of the Company in absence of reasonable certainty of future taxable profits
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37. Segment information

Basis of segmentation:

The Company's primary business segment is reflected based on principal business activities carried on by the Company. The Board of Directors has been identified as
being the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM') and evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on analysis of the various performance
indicators of the Company as a single unit. As per Indian Accounting Standard 108, Operating Segments, as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules 2015, the Company operates in one reportable business segment i.e., trading of polyester goods.

There are two customers having revenue amounting to 10% or more of Company's total revenue as per the below details:

Customer A: Rs.10,803,52 lakhs (PY: Rs. nil) (excluding GST)

Customer B: Rs 9,666.46 lakhs (PY: Rs. 5,321.12 lakhs) (excluding GST)

Geographical information:

a) Revenue:
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Domestic 80,022.87 18,360.37
Overseas* 3,288.71 -
Total 83,311.58 18,360.37
*Revenue from overseas countries:
UAE 3,288.71 -
b) Trade receivables:
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Domestic 5,609.02 374,62
Overseas* - -
Total 5,609.02 374.62

*Trade receivables from overseas countries:
UAE .
The Company does not have any revenue or trade receivable outside India.

38. Per transfer pricing legislation under section 92-92F of the Income-tax Act 1961, the Company is required to use certain specific methods in computing arm's length
price of international transactions with associated enterprises and maintains adequate documentation in this respect. The legislations require that such information and
documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, The Company has appointed independent consuitants for conducting the Transfer Pricing Study to determine whether the
transactions with associated enterprises undertake during the financial year are on an "arm's length basis". The Company is in the process of conducting a transfer pricing
study for the current financial year and expects such records to be in existence latest by the due date as required by law. However, in the opinion of the management the
update would not have a material impact on these financial statements. Accordingly, these financial statements do not include any adjustments for the transfer pricing
implications, if any.

39. The current liabilities of the Company exceed its current assets by Rs. 7,420.65 lakhs as at 31 March 2024 and has incurred losses during the year.The Company has
commissioned its plant in the current year ended 31 March 2024 and as per the management projections for future cash flows including availability of sufficient existing
credit facilities from the banks and the Holding Company, the management believes that the Company will be able to realize its assets and will be able to meet its liabilities at
the amounts stated in books and commitments in the normal course of business. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on a going concern basis.

40. Ratio analysis and its elements
a) The following are analytical ratios for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

. As at As at .

Particular ity 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 e
(a) Current ratio (i) 0.63 0.91 -36.69% #
(b) Debt equity ratio (ii) (4.22) 22.19 -521.88% #
(c) Debt service coverage ratio (iii) (3.35) (5.89) -434.66% #
(d) Retun on equity ratio (%) (iv) 276% -96% 175.70% #
(e) Inventory turnover ratio (v) 31.21 15.98 3020.68% #
(f) Trade receivable turnover ratio (vi) 27.81 46 56 2680.79% #
(g) Trade payable turnover ratio (vii) 8.60 7.00 759.66% #
(h) Net capital turnover ratio (viii) (11.21) (75.71) -1221.15% #
(i) Net profit ratio (%) (ix) -5% -3% -104.91% #
(i) Return on capital employed ratio (%) (x) -23% -3% -122.94% #
(k) Return on investment ratio (%) {x1} NA NA NA
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Reasons for variance
#The Company has started manufacturing operations during the current year, it being the first year of operalions, leading to variance.

Notes :

(i) Current ratio = Current assets/ current liabillties

(iiy Dabt Equity Ratio = Total Debt/ shareholders aquity

{iii) Debt service coverage ratio = Earnings available for debt service/ debt service (refer point (A) below)
(iv) Return on Equity = Net Profits after taxes / average Shareholder's Equity

(v) Inventory turnover ralio = Seles / closing inventory (average not considered as there was no inventory as at 31 March 2022)
(vi) Trade receivables tumover ratio = Net credit sales/ Closing accounts receivable

(vii) Trade payables turnover ratio = Nbt credit purchases (comprise of purchase of stock-in-trade) / average irade payable
(vili) Net capltal tumover ralio = Net Sales/ Working Capital

{ix) Net Proflt Ratio= Net profit/ Net sales

(x) Return on capital employed (ROCE)= Earning before interest and taxes/ Capital Employed (refer point (B) below)

(xi) Return on investment is not applicable to the Company as no investment is held by the Company.

Other explanatory points

(A) Earning for Debt Service = Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation and other amortizations + interest + other adjustments like ioss on
sale of PPE efc

Debt service = Interest & Lease payments + Principal repayments
“Net Profit after tax” means reported amount of “Profit / (loss) for the period” and it does not include items of other comprehensive income.
(B) Capital Employed = Tangible net worth + Total debt + Deferred tax liability

41. Other statutory information

(a} The Company do not have any Benami property, where any procesding has been initialed or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

(b) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(c) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period,

(d) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(e) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficianes

(f) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or enlity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Uttimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(9) The Group have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
(h) The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any govemment authority.

42.The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
inserted by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring companies, which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account. shalt use only
such accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account
along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

The Company uses an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software. However, the audit trad feature is not enabled at database level for accounting
software to log any direct data changes for users with certain privileged access rights. Further there is no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of
the accounting software where such feature is enabled.

Presently, the log 1s enabled at the application Jevel and the privileged acress to accounting software dalabase continues to be restricted to limited set of users who
necessarily require this access for maintenance and administration of the database.

This is the summary of material accounting policy information and other explanatory information referred to in our report of even date
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